Town of Williston Conservation Commission (WCC)
Minutes of June 3, 2020
Draft

Members Present: Laura Meyer, Jude Hersey, Reed Carr, Eric Howe, Kim Coleman, Carl Runge,
Gary Hawley

Members Absent:

Staff Present: Melinda Scott

Others Present: Terry Marron, Tom Kupfer (Fellowship of the Wheel), Kurt Shultz

1. Call to Order: Meeting was called to order at 7:30 AM.

2. Public Comment: Terry Marron had some questions about the Catamount Golf
development. She wanted to know what role the WCC has going forward, do they follow
up on the recommendations that were made. Melinda stated that the Preapplication
hearing was closed and the DRB will deliberate at the next meeting. If the project gets
Growth Management allocation, the applicant will submit an application for a
Discretionary Permit. At that time the WCC will have another opportunity to conduct a site
plan review, follow up on the recommendations made at Preapplication and make
additional recommendations if warranted. Terry asked if the WCC had concerns about the
scale of the development. Reed stated he has concerns about the area along Mountain
View Rd. He stated there are different mechanisms available to the town to have any
control over development in this area, namely either to conserve additional land or
through town land use regulations. Terry asked about the affordable housing provision
that was being used to increase the density of the development. Kim mentioned that the
W(CC has the ability to make recommendations to the DRB but has no authority beyond
that. Terry asked about the communication between the town Boards. Kim stated that
recommendations are communicated from the WCC to other Boards and information is
shared between Boards through the staff. Occasionally Boards meet together. There was
discussion of some of the objections to the development. Melinda stated if a development
meets the bylaw standards it will be approved. Carl stated and Kim reiterated that the
WCC's role is to evaluate a development against the standards of the bylaw and to make
recommendations in light of those standards. There was discussion about standards for
affordable housing, which is defined by state statute.

Terry also commented that she liked the new signage about wildlife on the Isham property.
Reed stated he has heard similar positive reviews from members of Sustainable Williston.
Melinda stated she continues to work with Helen Weston on educating visitors. Eric noted
much of this discussion related to areas outside the scope of the Conservation
Commission, and asked if the website has a document regarding the scope of the
Conservation Commission and other Boards. Melinda stated she thinks there is but it may
not be easy to find. WCC members agreed that it should be readily available.

1



3. Approval of May 20, 2020 minutes: Carl made a motion to approve the minutes as written,
Laura seconded the motion. The motion was carried with a 7-0 vote.

4. TDR Bylaw Amendment: Melinda gave a presentation on a proposal to strengthen
Williston’s Transfer of Development Rights program. The current Comprehensive Plan has
an objective to examine the town’s current TDR program and try to develop a more robust
program. Melinda explained what TDR means — transferring the right to develop a piece of
land to another piece of land. The parcels do not need to be contiguous. TDR is allowed in
Williston, to transfer rights from parcels in the ARZD to lands in the Growth Center.
However, in Williston this provision has only been used a few times. Finney Crossing and
Cottonwood Crossing are two examples. Melinda said the documentation of TDR in
Williston is inadequate. Williston’s current bylaw protects open space in the ARZD (75% of
the parent parcel on parcels over 10.5 acres required to be protected as open space). How
could Williston’s TDR be made stronger? Melinda did an analysis to calculate how many
TDRs are available in the Growth Center and how many could be transferred from “sending
areas” — high priority lands in other areas of town. The analysis only considered
undeveloped parcels in the Growth Center, not parcels with redevelopment potential
(parcels developed with commercial uses that could potentially be developed with
residential uses). In other areas of town there are nearly 5,000 acres of high priority land
that could be conserved. The balance of supply and demand is important to making the
program work well. Some considerations are 1) Should sending areas include high-priority
parcels in other areas besides the ARZD? 2) Should there be a minimum threshold of TDRs?
3) How to advertise a list of eligible parcels? Do outreach and assess potential interest?
Reed suggested holding an informational meeting including both landowners and
developers. Gary stated TDRs sent should be restricted to only the developable portions of
sending parcels. Others agreed. Melinda stated that each permanently protected area
through a TDR would need to be mapped as required by statute. Reed stated the
delineation of a sending area should require WCC review. The protected area would be
held under a conservation easement by a third party (town or VLT). Gary asked if
landowners who sold TDRs would pay less in property taxes, Melinda stated it should work
that way. Conversely, those who buy TDRs should be paying more taxes. Melinda stated
taxation policies need to be documented clearly. Gary asked if property owners can ask for
an updated assessment, Melinda stated she did not know, but thought they probably
could. Melinda asked the WCC whether they wanted to continue to pursue this, the WCC
stated they would like to. TDR is an underutilized but important tool. Reed would like more
information on potential downsides or possible concerns of strengthening the TDR
program. Eric stated it would be important to choose the right sending parcels. Gary asked
whether if a parcel becomes a sending parcel, could the town acquire trail easements? No,
this would not provide an ability for the town to develop a trail. Gary mentioned that some
parcels were identified as high priority due to their being an important trail linkage, so it

2



could be a problem if a TDR prevents the town from getting a future trail. The WCC
discussed ways in which the town might also get the rights to a trail easement. Melinda will
draft some bylaw language and compile a summary of research into how other places have
approached TDR. Melinda will also send the WCC a link to an informative document
written by VNRC.

5. Catamount Forest Management Plan: Laura provided an overview of the discussions the
Catamount Committee have had about the plan and comments provided by the COFC. The
Committee will review the plan one last time on June 22 and likely make a
recommendation to the Selectboard, which will consider the plan on July 7. Kim spoke
about the public survey to provide feedback on the management plan and the public
webinars. The survey got over 60 responses. The survey collected demographic
information, feedback on the management plan and feedback on online webinars.
Concerns highlighted include invasive species, dog walking (although not germane to forest
management), and concerns about trail degradation from the logging activity and lack of a
plan for restoration. People are interested in events both in person and online. The
concerns about dogs indicate the possible need to do further outreach on how the decision
not to allow dogs was arrived at. Laura commented that the dog discussion should wait
until the forest management plan has been adopted so as not to distract the focus. Terry
commented that she was on the original Committee and she shared some of her insight
into the issue. She suggested including in an article that there are several other places in
Williston where people can walk their dogs. Kim suggested that perhaps she and Laura
could write an article or letter to the Observer explaining what went into the discussions
when the management plan was being drafted. Kim will summarize the survey and share
the results. Melinda said she was looking for a recommendation from the WCC for the
Forest Management Plan. She asked if the WCC members could review it once more prior
to the next meeting and be prepared to vote on a recommendation then.

6. Staff Report — Other Business

e WNRCD Water Quality Trainings: WNRCD got a grant from the Lake Champlain Basin
Program to deliver trainings to Conservation Commissions. There are three topics to
pick from, and the WCC should choose one. WCC members want to hear about all
topics. Melinda will ask if this is possible. Eric suggested perhaps the WCC could pay to
have the additional trainings. Jude suggested that maybe WCC members could attend
additional trainings given to other Conservation Commissions. Eric added this would
also provide a way to have a conversation with other groups about these issues.
Melinda mentioned that Williston now has a Blue Certification Program that could be a
leveraging point for the Stormwater Solutions training, which could be done in
partnership with the Stormwater Coordinator.



e Brownell Mt Trails — Melinda stated that Tom Kupfer, FOTW Board Member approached
her to ask about the possibility of developing a mountain biking trail on Brownell
Mountain. Melinda relayed the history to Tom of the WCC investigating possible access
points to the parcel and being unsuccessful in that regard. Melinda stated that she
recently found out the parcel is under Act 250 Jurisdiction, which adds a whole different
level of review and many challenges. Tom added his perspective. He had seen in Chapter
8 of the Williston Comprehensive Plan a statement about the goal of developing
Brownell Mt as a country park. Tom reached out to an abutting property owner, Kurt
Shultz, who is enthusiastic about the project and has offered to have a parking lot for
access on his property. Tom wanted to investigate the feasibility of putting in a small
trail system to expand places where people can mountain bike and to help relieve the
pressure on other areas like Mud Pond Country Park. Tom does not think its feasible for
FOTW to put in the effort of applying to Act 250 and potentially waiting for years while
the project goes through Act 250 review. There are concerns with the South Brownell Rd
pull off as it is currently configured. People tend to stop on either side of the road and
dump trash. The town has tried to close off these pull offs but it has not dissuaded
people from using them. Kurt stated there are existing logging roads on the Brownell Mt
parcel that are nice to walk on. He stated the idea is to construct a small parking lot just
south of the pullout to accommodate 8 cars. Melinda provided information related to
the town bylaw requirements for parking lots — it needs to be a minimum of 50 feet
from the town road right of way and would need a landscaped buffer. Melinda asked
the WCC if this is something they would like to pursue. Ultimately the Selectboard
would need to decide whether it is in the town’s best interest to pursue this. Laura
stated that if nothing is done, people could still walk there. Tom does not think Brownell
Mt would become a biking destination, but local people would use it. He stated that
trails that FOTW trails are multiuse and benefit all user types. Tom stated that VMBA is
working to advocate for Act 250 reform and removing trails from jurisdiction. So far not
much progress has been made.

e Town Wide Trail Assessment: SE Group is working on a town wide trail assessment.
Melinda surveyed the trails with SE Group staff. It was very informative for her to
identify the issues present on the trails and discuss how we might correct those issues.
Once the information is compiled Melinda will share it with the WCC. It will provide
some insight into the ongoing costs of maintaining the trail network.

e VYCC Trail Work: Melinda would like to work with VYCC to repair the worst spots on the
Sucker Brook Hollow trail.

Minutes Submitted by Melinda Scott:
Approved by WCC:



